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SNOW “AMERICA” OF MARBLEHEAD, ARCHIBALD SELMAN, MASTER. ON MONDAY, JANUARY 2, 1803. AFTER A WATER-COLOR BY M. CORNE
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PREFACE

UNTIL recent times the sailing ship has been so vital a factor in the life and development of New England that every fireside has felt in some degree the influence of its commercial intercourse with nearly every port in the known world. It is natural, therefore, that the descendants of the sailors and merchants of earlier days should inherit an interest in the ways of the old-time ship and seek to know more about the building, rigging and sailing of the various types of vessels that once brought adventure and a livelihood to many a New England boy. That interest has led to the preservation in a number of the old sea ports, of museum collections devoted to the commercial marine. Numerous private collections of ship pictures, ship models, marine objects and books relating to the ship and to the sea are also being made not only in all parts of New England but throughout the United States.

The Marine Research Society has been organized at Salem, Massachusetts, for the purpose of collecting and publishing worthwhile material relating to the ship, its construction, rig and navigation; to the ways of the sailor and his adventures in uncharted seas; to the days of the pirates and the merchant adventurers; and to any other matter of general interest that pertains to the commercial marine. In this connection it is also proposed to reprint certain publications that have now become rare and are inaccessible to the average collector in this field. It is the aim of the Society to restrict its work to the publication of matter of scientific or historical value and it thereby hopes to deserve and receive the co-operation of serious students of maritime subjects so that the results of their investigations may become known through its Publications.

This volume, the initial Publication of the Society, should find a wide appeal because of the lively, present-day interest in the old-time ship picture, and it has only been made possible through the generous co-operation of museums and private collectors of these interesting and oft-times curious pictorial representations of the sailing vessels of other days. While many of the ship pictures in the volume are here reproduced for the first time, a considerable number have been included through the kind permission of authors and publishers. This accounts for the great variation in size of the engraved blocks. It should also be borne in mind that many original ship pictures have become stained and discolored so that it is now impossible to obtain good results when they are reproduced. It has been the aim to include in this volume pictures of vessels built, owned or commanded by New England men.

Numerous friends have aided in the preparation of this volume and the Society is under particular obligation to Mr. Charles H. Taylor, Jr., of Boston, for making available the resources of his collection of ship pictures,—probably the largest collection in private hands in New England and containing numerous examples of the work of the artists about the Mediterranean. He has also generously supplied the colored frontispiece reproducing for the first time an early water-color in his collection. The Peabody Museum and the Essex Institute, at Salem, have loaned engraved blocks used in their publications and co-operated in other ways. The ship pictures that have appeared from time to time in the valuable historical series published by the State Street Trust Company of Boston, are here included by the kind permission of Mr. Allan Forbes and Mr. Perry Walton. Cordial thanks are also due to Mr. Hollis French, Horace Gray, M. D., Mr. Arthur F. Harlow, Mr. William R. Hedge, Mr. James A. Hutchinson, Joseph Morrill, Esq., Messrs. Houghton Mifflin Company, Messrs. Little, Brown & Co., the Bostonian Society, the Massachusetts Historical Society, and the Society for the Preservation of New England Antiquities, all of Boston ; Dr. Alfred Johnson, Mrs. Herbert Foster Otis, and Prof. Charles S. Sargent, all of Brookline; Mr. Francis W. Sprague of Cambridge; Oliver H. Howe, M. D. of Cohasset ; and to all others who have in any way furthered the production of this volume.





NEW England, with its many rivers and long indented coast-line, has always been a breeding place for sailors and a natural location for shipbuilding. The early settlers along the shoreline found no extent of rich soil awaiting cultivation and of necessity turned to fishing and to trade. The forests close at hand supplied the best of timber for building vessels and on the sea a fishing industry and a trade with England and the West Indies soon brought prosperity to the colonies.





FIRST VESSEL BUILT IN NEW ENGLAND

Probably the first vessel to be built in New England was the Virginia, a “faire pinnace of thirty tons,” launched in the spring of 1607 at the mouth of the Kennebec river in Maine. It was built by the newly founded Popham Colony and after some voyaging along shore and sailing up the Kennebec as far as the head of navigation, to what is now Augusta, it set sail for England when the settlement was abandoned in the fall of that year and arrived safely. This small vessel afterwards made several voyages across the Atlantic and in June, 1610, was lying at anchor at Point Comfort, Virginia, when Lord De La Warre arrived, it having brought over a part of the Gates and Somers expedition in August of the previous year.

In the museum of the Pilgrim Society at Plymouth, Massachusetts, is preserved the hull of the small sloop Sparrow Hawk, which sailed from London for Virginia, with passengers, in the fall of 1626 and was wrecked near Plymouth. The sands of Cape Cod safely preserved, until recent years, the keel and ribs of this, the earliest known sailing vessel that has survived in New England. She was only forty feet long and the emigrants who crossed the Atlantic in her, most of them unfamiliar with the sea and its moods, certainly were not lacking in personal courage or faith in their destiny.

The Sparrow Hawk was forty feet in length, and had a breadth of beam of twelve feet and ten inches, and a depth of nine feet and seven and one-half inches. Her keel measured twenty-eight feet and ten inches and the rake of her stern-post was four inches to the foot. “Her forward lines are convex, her after lines sharp and concave, and her midship section is almost the arc of a circle.”1 She had a square stern and a single mast located about midship for there is a hole in the keelson showing where it was stepped. The rig probably was a lateen yard with a triangular sail. Her planking was English oak, two inches thick and most of it ten inches wide.
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DRAFT OF THE LINES OF THE HULL OF THE “SPARROW-HAWK,” MADE IN 1865 BY D.J. LAWLER.




An early need at the Plymouth Colony was a ship-carpenter and one was sent over in the spring of 1624. Governor Bradford records that “he quickly builte them 2 very good & strong shalops (which after did them greate service), and a greate and strong lighter, and had hewne timber for 2 catches; but that was lost, for he fell into a feaver in ye hote season of that yeare [1624] . . . and dyed.” It was one of these shallops that was sent to the Kennebec river in the fall of the next year to open up a trade in furs with the Indians, a trade that eventually relieved the Pilgrims from their financial difficulties and extricated them from the clutches of the Merchant Adventurers in London. The Governor writes that “bigger vessel had they none. They had laid a little deck over her midships to keepe ye corne drie, but ye men were faine to stand it out all weathers without shelter; and yt time of ye year begins to growe tempestious.” Their ship-carpenter was dead but a house-carpenter sawed their larger shallop in halves, lengthened and decked her over and rebuilt her into a small pinnace that did good service for seven years. Later, the Colony bought an English trading ship, the “White Angel,” and a fishing vessel that had been fitted out in England to fish under the English custom of shares.

The Company of the Massachusetts Bay early recognized the need for shipbuilding in the new colony and in their first general letter of instructions to John Endecott, dated April 17, 1629, wrote :





“We haue sent six Shipwrights, of whom Robert Molton is cheif . . . desiring that their labour may bee employed 2/3 for the generall Companie, and 1/3 for Mr. Cradock and his Assotiats.” On May 28th following, the Company wrote directing that “The provisions for building of Shipps, as Pitch, Tar, Rozen, Okum, old ropes for Okum, Cordage, & Saylcloth, in all these Shipps, with 9 fferkins and 5 halfe barrells of Nayles in the 4 Sisters, are 2/3 for the Companie in generall, and 1/3 for the Gouernor, Mr. Cradock, and his partners; as is also charge of one George Farr, now sent over to the six Shipwrights formerly sent. Our desire is a Storehouse may be made apart for the provisions of the Shipwrights and their Tooles, whereof Robert Moulton to haue the cheife Charge, and an Inventory to bee sent vs of all the Tooles, the new by themselues and the old by themselues, that was sent ouer for the vse of the said Shipwrights, or any of them, in these and the former shipps; . . . and our desire is, that these men bee kept at worke togeather, adding to their helpe such of the Companye’s servants as you shall fynde needfull, & proportionably 1/2 as many of Mr. Cradock’s, which course wee hold most equall ; and that accordingly as any vessells bee built, first that both partyes may bee accomodated for the present occasion; but soe soone as 3 Shallops shalbe finished, two of them to bee sett out for the Companie, by lott, or as you shall agree there to make an equall devision, and one for our Gournor & his partners.”





“THE BLESSING OF THE BAY”

At the outset, the great need for housing the immigrants seems to have occupied the energies of Robert Moulton and his company of ship-carpenters and so far as known nothing was done about building the three shallops ordered by the Company. Shipbuilding in Massachusetts really began with the launching at Medford, on July 4, 1631, of Governor Winthrop’s trading vessel, The Blessing of the Bay, which was built mainly of locust. He records that the “bark being of thirty tons went to sea,” Aug. 31, 1631 and the following October she “went on a voyage to the eastward,” and soon engaged in trade with the Dutch at New Amsterdam. An eighteen-ton pinnace brought Virginia corn and tobacco to Salem in 1631 and the same year a ship was built at Richmond Island, off Cape Elizabeth, Maine, which made regular voyages for some years between that trading settlement and England. This probably was the first regular packet service in the Colonies. In 1634, a pinnace of fifty tons came to Boston from Maryland loaded with corn to exchange for fish. In July, 1634, Capt. John Mason wrote to the Secretary of the Admiralty that more than fifty ships were trading to New England, of which “six sail of ships at least, if not more, belong to them.”

Governor Winthrop when writing in his “Journal” of The Blessing of the Bay, always mentions her as a bark. As the bark-rigged vessel of to-day was unknown at the time, the question naturally arises, “What was the rig of the Blessing ?” The Governor generally did not use the word in its purely literary sense as throughout his “Journal” he seemingly differentiates in mentioning the rigs of different vessels. His “barks” ranged from twelve to forty tons in size and were both “small” and “large.” In 1636, a “bark” of twenty tons met John Oldham’s “small pinnace,” near Block Island and four years later a pinnace called the “Coach,” on her voyage from Salem to New Haven, sprang a leak near Cape Cod, when “one Jackson, a godly man and an experienced seaman, laying the bark upon the contrary side, they fell to getting out the water” and safely returned to Salem. A “small Norsey bark of twenty-five tons,” arrived in Boston in 1635 bound for the mouth of the Connecticut river. She had had a very stormy voyage but brought safely fourteen passengers, including two women, with their goods. They arrived four days too late, for Winthrop had already sent a “bark” with carpenters and workmen to take posession before the Dutch came.

In 1689, Capt. Cyprian Southack of Boston, captured in the Channel near the French coast and brought to Boston, a “small Ship or Barque called the St. John Frigott,” of 40 tons. She belonged to Quebec and was condemned as a prize.

On the other hand, Edward Johnson of Woburn, writing in 1650, relates that “many a fair ship had her framing and finishing here, besides lesser vessels, barques and ketches; many a Master, besides common Seamen, had their first learning in this Colony.”

In the Essex County Quarterly Court Records are filed the papers in a suit brought in 1666 in connection with the building of a “barke,” containing items showing costs of “a fore mast and maine yard,” and labor in “seeling the cabin.”

In a list of twenty-seven vessels that arrived or cleared at Boston between Aug. 16, 1661 and Feb. 25, 1662 and had given bonds for customs, were ships of 60 to 150 tons burden, “barcques,” of 30 to 50 tons, ketches of 16 to 30 tons, a “pincke” of 30 tons, and vessels of unnamed rig in tonnage from 40 to 150 tons.—Massachusetts Archives, Vol. 60, leaf 34.

By the year 1641 shipbuilding had become of such importance in the Colony that the Great and General Court adopted the following order:—

“Whereas the country is nowe in hand with the building of ships, which is a busines of great importance for the common good, & therefore sutable care is to bee taken that it bee well performed, according to the commendable course of England, & other places, it is therefore ordered that, when any ship is to bee built within this iurisdiction, it shalbee lawfull for the owners to appoint & put in some able man to survey the worke & workmen from time to time, as is usual in England ; & the same shall have liberty & power as belongs to his office, & if the ship-carpenter shall not, upon his advice, reforme & amende any thing which hee shall find to bee amise, then, upon complaint to the Governor, or Deputy, or any other 2 magistrates, they shall appoint 2 of the most sufficient ship carpenters of this iurisdiction, & shall give them authority from time to time (as neede shall require) to take veiw of every such ship, & all worke thereto belonging, & to see it bee performed & carried on according to the rules of their arte ; & for this end an oath shalbee administered to them, to bee faithfull & indifferent between the owners & workmen ; & their charges to bee borne by such as shalbee found in default; & these veiwers shall have power to cause any bad timbers, or other insufficient worke or materialls, to bee taken out & amended, & all that they shall iudge to bee amisse to bee reformed at the charge of them through whose fault it growes.”

In 1639, the same Court exempted ship-carpenters, fishermen (during the fishing season) and millers from compulsory military training.





THE SHALLOP

The shallop is frequently mentioned in the early records. It was a small vessel having a mainmast, foremast and lug sails and used in fishing and coasting. They were good sailers.2 In 1630, when the ship bearing Winthrop and his company of settlers neared Cape Ann, they “met a shallop, which stood from Cape Ann towards the Isles of Shoals, which belonged to some English fishermen,” and the next morning they were boarded by Mr. Allerton from a shallop bound to Pemaquid and an hour later another shallop came out to meet them as they stood in by Baker’s Isle to the harbor at Naumkeag, now Salem. In the spring of 1640, one Palmer, of Hingham, “an ancient and skilful seaman,” in his ten-ton shallop, was overset in Boston harbor. Some one on board “had the sheet in his hand and let fly,” but there being little ballast in her the shallop turned over and the men aboard climbed upon her side and soon after were taken off by a passing pinnace. In 1635, “a great shallop,” carrying goods, was wrecked on Cape Ann during a northeasterly snow storm and about the same time a shallop bound for Salem laden with goods worth £100, was lost off Plymouth harbor. In 1648, “a shallop having been fishing at Monhigen and returning with other boats,” the wind failing missed her way and split upon a rock. “The other boats fell to their oars and so escaped a like fate.”

When Rev. Francis Higginson set sail for New England in the spring of 1629 he records in his journal of the voyage that after his ship, the Talbot, of three hundred tons, left the Needles, “wee tooke in our long boate & Shalope.” A month later, when approaching the coast, “ye master of our shipp hoisted out ye shalop” to investigate “a great deale of froth” seen in the distance fearing “it might bee some breach of water.”

Not infrequently the shallop was decked over, in whole or in part. In 1670 an agreement was made between Erasomus James, carpenter, of Marblehead, and the owners of a “boat or shallop” by which he was to rebuild the same “god sending him life & conuiant weather to worke in.” The shallop was to be rebuilt one whole strake higher than her first build; he was to put in new planks where needed, to seal it, make up the rooms and do all other axe work within board and fit for sea excepting anchor stocks, oars, masts, yards, tiller and chimney.

On April 8, 1675, the Governor and Council of the Massachusetts Bay appointed a committee of three men to appraise two shallops, prizes brought in by Captain Mosely. The shallop Edward & Thomas, with its “masts & yards & a boate,” was valued at £40. and mention is made of standing and running rigging, a mainsail of about ninety yards, a foresail of about forty-five yards, two cables, two anchors, an iron pot and pot hooks, a compass and a pump. The shallop Penobscot, “that Roads went out in,” must have been a small vessel and perhaps in poor condition for “The Hull Masts & Canoe” were valued at only £6. A mainsail, old foresail and a bonnet, are listed. —Massachusetts Archives, Vol. 61, leaf 83.

“A French built shallop with a Topsail,” owned in Salem and fishing off Block Island in the spring of 1704 was mistaken for a French privateer and an armed expedition was sent out from Newport, R. I., to effect her capture.

In a 1724 log-book of the “good sloop Sarah,” on a voyage from the Island of Jersey to Cape Ann, mention is made of sighting off Cape Sable, “two Shallops & one Skooner of Marblehead.”



OEBPS/images/e9781602390393_i0003.jpg
<\
NS 77l
/)

NN
N

m\






OEBPS/images/e9781602390393_cover.jpg
- JonnRosinson anp GEoRGE Francis Dow






OEBPS/images/e9781602390393_i0002.jpg





